
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE (HPBC) AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Thursday, 13 July 2017 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Meeting Room A  - Buxton Town Hall 

5 July 2017 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence  

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee  

3. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting 3 - 6 

4. Review of Local Ethical Framework 7 - 14 

PART 2 

5. To approve the Exempt minutes of the previous meeting 15 - 16 

6. Complaints - Review and Monitoring Report 17 - 20 

 (Paragraph 1, 2 - Information relating to any individual. 
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.) 
 

 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Membership of Standards Committee (HPBC) 
Councillor C Johnson (Chair) Councillor F Sloman (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor C Howe Councillor J Kappes 
Councillor G Oakley Councillor R Quinn 

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 
 
Meeting: Thursday, 17 November 2016 at 6.40 pm in the Board Room, Pavilion 

Gardens, Buxton 
 
Present: Councillor Johnson (Chairman) 
 

Councillors Howe, Kappes and Quinn. 
 

Independent Persons – Mr P Carnall, Mr P Grant, Mrs C Morgan 
 
Parish Members – Councillors Martin and Norton. 
 
Councillor Thrane was also in attendance. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Oakley and Mr P 
Matthews. 
 

 
17/07  MINUTES 

 (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2016 be approved. 
 

17/08  LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL LETTER 
  (Agenda Item 4) 

 
Consideration was given to the content of the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter for 
the period April 2015 – March 2016.  Statistics and the small number of 
complaints reaching the Ombudsman were discussed. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the content of the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter (included as Appendix A 
to the report) be noted. 
 

17/09 STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  
 (Agenda Item 5) 

 
The Committee received a report that reviewed the work of the Standards 
Committee during 2015/2016.   
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the report be noted and presented to the next meeting of Council. 

 
 
 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3




 

Standards Committee 

Thursday, 17 November 2016 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

17/10  ANNUAL REVIEW OF COUNCILLOR DEVELOPMENT 
  (Agenda Item 6) 

 
There was a review of councillor development activities held over the previous 
12 months.  Planning training for Parish Councillors was available.  A 
refresher session on the Code of Conduct would be arranged and Parish 
Councils would be invited to attend.  Audit and Regulatory Committee training 
would also be arranged.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

17/11  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
  (Agenda Item 7) 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
as there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

17/12  EXEMPT MINUTES 
  (Agenda Item 8) 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

That the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 
29 June 2016 be approved. 
 

17/13 COMPLAINTS – STANDARDS COMMITTEE MONITORING REPORT 
  (Agenda Item 9) 

 
There was a report on complaints made to the Monitoring Officer under the 
Council’s agreed arrangements for dealing with standards complaints.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4




 

Standards Committee 

Thursday, 17 November 2016 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 
The meeting concluded at 6.57 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



          
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL  

 
 

Report to the Standards Committee 
 

13 July 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Appendix Attached: Appendix A – Proposed Revised Local Ethical 
Framework 

 
  
1. Reason for the Report 
  

1.1 To review the Local Ethical Framework which draws together various 
Council policies to ensure high standards of ethical behaviour and good 
governance throughout the Authority. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Committee approves the proposed revised Local Ethical 
Framework. 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1  To ensure high standards of ethical behaviour and good governance 
throughout the Authority the Council has adopted a range of policies and 
procedures.  These were brought together during 2013 by the adoption of 
a Local Ethical Framework. 

 
3.2 The Framework included a commitment to review the document to ensure 

that it is entirely “fit for purpose” and reflects all relevant best practice 
guidance. A revised Framework is therefore proposed in Appendix A to 
this report for the consideration of the Committee. 

 
3.3 Following approval of the revised Framework group leaders will be asked 

to re-endorse the document. 
 

TITLE: Review of Local Ethical Framework 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 

Councillor for Finance and Corporate 
Services 

   
CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon – Senior Officer Governance 

and Member Support 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 
 

4.1 High standards of ethical behaviour and good governance are 
fundamental to the achievement of the Council’s corporate priorities. 

 
5. Options and Analysis 

 
5.1 The Committee may wish to suggest alternative amendments to the 

revised Local Ethical Framework. 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
Not Applicable 
 

6.2 Workforce 
The Framework includes a number of policies applicable to the 
Council’s workforce. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
The Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme is included in the 
Ethical Framework. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
Not Applicable 
 

6.5 Legal 
The publication refers to the Localism Act 2011 with regards to the 
Standards framework. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
Not applicable. 
 

6.7 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
Consultation will take place with the Council’s group leaders. 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
The Ethical Framework reduces the possibility of complaints being 
made to the Council with regards to standards issues. 

 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Various policies of the Council Linden Vernon - Senior Officer 
Governance and Member Support 
Tel: 01538 395613 
Email: linden.vernon@highpeak.gov.uk 

 

Page 8

mailto:linden.vernon@highpeak.gov.uk


7. Background and Detail 
 

7.1 Section 27 (1) of The Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to promote 
and maintain high standards of conduct for its elected and co-opted 
members.  To ensure high standards of ethical behaviour and good 
governance throughout the Authority the Council has adopted a number of 
policies in addition to the Members’ Code of Conduct itself.    

 
7.2 The various policies are drawn together within one document to clarify 

their place and role within the overall Ethical Framework.  This is 
published on the Council’s website with its Constitution, to provide a route 
map for all Members, Officers and the public to identify and consider the 
policies and procedures which the Council has in place under its Ethical 
Framework.   

 
7.3 The Framework includes a commitment to review the document to ensure 

that it is entirely “fit for purpose” and reflects all relevant best practice 
guidance.  As the Standards Committee last considered the Ethical 
Framework in November 2013 it is therefore appropriate to review the 
document at this time.  A proposed revised Local Ethical Framework is 
therefore provided in Appendix A to this report for the consideration of 
the Committee.  This takes into account consequential amendments 
including the adoption of the Local Public Services Senior Managers’ 
Code of Ethics and revised core principles for good governance held 
within the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance (these will be 
considered in detail at the Council’s Audit and Regulatory meeting 
Committee meeting on 26 July 2017 ). 

 
7.4 The Ethical Framework was endorsed by all political groups within the 

Council upon adoption.  This included a statement to confirm the 
commitment of each group leader to uphold both the letter and spirit of the 
documents forming part of the Ethical Framework and to seek to ensure 
compliance with those requirements by all Members within those political 
groups.  It is proposed that group leaders be asked to consider the re-
endorsement of the revised Framework following its approval. 

 
 

  
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
APPENDIX A 

 

Local Ethical Framework for High Peak Borough Council 
 
The Council’s Ethical Framework describes the set of rules and procedures within 
which the Council operates in order to ensure the highest possible standards of 
ethical behaviour and good governance.  The Ethical Framework includes the  
statutory provisions  contained within the Localism Act 2011 and also reflects 
guidance from the Department for Communities and Local Government.  It sets out 
the standards of behaviour that the Council expects of its councillors and staff in all 
areas of their conduct and also clarifies roles and responsibilities for the interaction 
between councillors and staff. 
 
The overall Ethical Framework for the Council contains several important constituent 
parts, as outlined below.  The Council is committed to reviewing the Framework to 
ensure that it is entirely “fit for purpose” and reflects all relevant best practice 
guidance.  Responsibility for the development, implementation, monitoring and 
promotion of the Ethical Framework rests with the Council’s Standards Committee 
under the guidance of the Monitoring Officer. 
 
The principal constituent parts of the Ethical Framework are as follows: 
 
The Constitution 
 
The Constitution sets out the way in which the Council operates, including details as 
to the way in which decisions are made by the Authority and the rules and 
procedures to be followed to ensure that all decisions are taken in an appropriate, 
open and transparent manner and, in particular, in accordance with the provisions of 
the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  The Council has adopted within its 
Constitution all relevant statutory provisions and, in addition, has agreed such further 
procedures as are necessary to ensure the efficient running of the Council.  The 
Council has an established Constitution Sub-Committee to continually review and 
update the Constitution to ensure that all the requirements referred to within this 
section are complied with. 
 
The Code of Conduct for Members 
 
The Code adopted by the Council sets out the standards of conduct that councillors 
are required to adhere to whenever they are conducting the business of the Council, 
whenever they are carrying out business of the Office to which they have been 
elected or appointed and when they are acting as a representative of the Council.  
The Council has adopted a code which complies with the relevant statutory guidance 
made under the Localism Act 2011.   
 
Local Code of Corporate Governance  
 
Corporate Governance is the system by which local authorities direct and control 
their functions related to their communities.  It is underpinned by the fundamental 

Page 11



 

principles of openness, integrity and accountability.  The Local Code of Corporate 
Governance covers  the following core principles for good governance: 
 
 

A.  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, 
and respecting the rule of law  

B.  Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement  

C.  Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 
benefits  

D.  Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 
intended outcomes 

E.  Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and 
the individuals within it  

F.  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management  

G.  Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 
effective accountability  

  

A Corporate Governance Action Plan is  produced to cover all areas within the Local 
Code and reported to and monitored by the Audit and Regulatory Committee. 
 
Register of Interests 
 
The Council’s Code of Conduct requires all Councillors to register their Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and other interests in the Council’s Register of Interests.  A copy 
of the full register is available in the Council’s offices at Town Hall, Buxton and via its 
website www.highpeak.gov.uk  
 
Equalities and Diversity Scheme 
 
The Council has adopted policies to ensure compliance with its statutory 
responsibilities under all legislation relating to the support of equalities and diversity.   
 
Other Supporting Codes and Protocols  
 
The Council has produced further codes and protocols.  These are as follows:- 
 

 A Guide for Members and Officers Appointed to Partnerships and Other Outside 
Bodies 

 Bullying and Harassment 

 Protocol on Land Use Planning Matters and Development Control Committee 

 Monitoring Officer Protocol 

 Whistleblowing 

 Rights and Responsibilities HPBC Member/Officer Protocols and Conventions 

 ICT Security Policy 

 Employee Code of Conduct 
Local Public Services Senior Managers’ Code of Ethics 
Statement of High Peak Borough Council’s Group Leaders 
 

Page 12

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/hp/your-council/about-the-council/councillors
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/


 

This Ethical Framework has been developed by the whole Council and has the 
support of all political groups. 
 
We are committed to working together to ensure compliance by all members within 
our groups with both the letter and spirit of the documents forming part of this Ethical 
Framework. 
 
In particular, we will seek to ensure that no member within our groups behaves in 
such a way as to give rise to the possibility of a complaint to the Council.  In the 
event of our being made aware of behaviour which may be considered unacceptable 
we will seek to resolve such matters within our groups, inviting the assistance of the 
Chief Executive and the Monitoring Officer as necessary. 
 
We undertake to promote excellent standards of behaviour amongst all members of 
our groups, to ensure openness, transparency and accountability to those who elect 
us. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Review of Local Ethical Framework
	Review of Local Ethical Framework Appendix A

	5 To approve the Exempt minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Complaints - Review and Monitoring Report

